APPROVED MINUTES
PLANNING COMMISSION
CITY OF WYOMING, MINNESOTA
APRIL 23, 2019
7:00PM

CALL TO ORDER:

Planning Commission Chairman Lobermeier called the Regular Meeting of the Wyoming Planning
Commission for April 23, 2019 to order at 7:00 PM

CALL OF ROLL:
On a Call of the Roll the following members of the Wyoming Planning Commission were present:
Mark Lobermeier, Joel Ericson, Katie West, Bryan Murdock, and Judy Coughlin

ABSENT: None

Also Present: Fred Weck Zoning Administrator, City Administrator Robb Linwood, and Council
Liaison Lisa Iverson

DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM:
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:

OPEN FORUM: NONE
APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

1. Consider approving the minutes of the “Regular Meeting” of the Wyoming, Minnesota
Planning Commission for April 9, 2019

A MOTION WAS MADE BY COMMISSIONER WEST, SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER
ERICSON, TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE “REGULAR MEETING” OF THE
WYOMING, MINNESOTA PLANNING COMMISSION FOR APRIL 23, 2019 AS
SUBMITTED.

Voting Aye: Murdock, Ericson, West, Coughlin, and Lobermeier
Voting Nay: None
Abstain: None
Absent: None

SCHEDULED PUBLIC HEARINGS: NONE
NEW BUSINESS:
2. Robb Linwood, City Administrator — Communications Update

City Administrator Linwood stated that he wanted to give an update to the Commission on a
potential project for the City. He explained that the Roers Company is proposing a three-story
49-unit apartment building on the Bingham property. He noted that if that goes well, there may
be a second phase with another apartment building. He showed pictures of some sample projects
that would be similar to what they would build in the City. He explained that a 2018 County
housing study showed a significant need for both market rate and affordable multi-family housing
in the area. He stated that the developer is pursuing a 9% affordable housing tax credit and will
find out in October if they are approved. He stated that as part of this application project, they
need to show the City supports the project and will allow TIF to be used. He explained that they
will also need a purchase agreement with an option on the land from the EDA for the property.
He noted that Roers has been awarded the 9% tax credit for the past two years, but there are no



guarantees. He stated the Bingham property is currently listed for $595,000 and Roers has
proposed to purchase it for $435,000 which would result in a shortfall of about $52,341. He stated
that the EDA does have some funds in reserve that could be used to offset the shortfall. He gave
a brief explanation of how TIF would work in this situation. He stated that the $52,341 shortfall
would be paid back by the City capturing 8% of the annual increment of the TIF revenues. He
stated that some of the benefits to the City would be removal of the annual mortgage payment
and the annual property tax expenses. He stated that in addition to providing the City with
affordable and market rate housing, it would also provide the City with permit and zoning fees,
utility access charges, and park dedication fees. He stated that the County HRA/EDA will be
meeting at the end of the month to discuss the project and the City Council will meet on May 7,
2019 to discussion supporting the project. He stated that if this project does move forward, the
Planning Commission will need to take a look and review the zoning and site plan.

Commissioner Coughlin stated that here is a need for more housing like this in the City and feels
it will benefit the local employers also.

Commissioner Murdock asked how much the City paid for the property.

City Administrator Linwood stated that the cost was split between the City EDA and the County
EDA and was around $880,000.

OLD BUSINESS:

3. Comprehensive Plan update — Land use Chapter — Growth Area Maps

Chair Lobermeier suggested beginning by looking at the Growth Area Maps and then moving onto
the information that Commissioner Murdock put together with a suggested Table of Contents.

Zoning Administrator Weck explained that he had taken the County GIS information and outlined
the growth areas and superimposed them over the wetland areas. He noted that he had kept the
scale as similar as possible on all the maps. He reviewed the areas that Growth Areas 1-6
covered.

Chair Lobermeier noted that Paxmar’s development plans overlap some of the wetland areas on
the site and will reduce the amount of developable property. He stated that he thinks this is a
good start in looking at potential growth areas. He stated that he understands the simplicity of
saying the City has 6 growth areas, but if they are numbered, he suspects there are actually many
more.

Commissioner Coughlin stated that she agrees that these areas are places that the City can
serve, but doesn’t feel that other areas of the City should be excluded from being potential growth
areas because they may not all need sanitary sewer. She suggested establishing criteria for
growth areas and then defining them with “more serviceable” or “less serviceable” designations.
She asked about the acreage for Growth Area #3 south because she thinks the numbers listed
are incorrect.

Zoning Administrator Weck agreed that something was wrong with the acreage for Growth Area
#3 and will go back and make the needed correction.

Chair Lobermeier stated that the highest priority properties will be both vacant and served as well
as areas that have the potential for higher density. He stated that he doesn’t understand why the
City would go with low density housing in these areas if the land is served and can serve higher
density. He stated that he did not think this information was considered in the past when they
looked at the land use maps.

2



Commissioner Coughlin asked how WSB determined the growth areas.

Zoning Administrator Weck stated that he thinks WSB looked at the capacity of the existing lift
station.

Chair Lobermeier stated that he thinks the limitations of the growth areas will need to be described
better. He noted that this area is currently zoned rural residential.

Commissioner Murdock asked if any additional ground work has been done, such as creating cut
sheets, that show the different parcels, the owners name, their interest in selling and their contact
information.

Zoning Administrator Weck stated that this has not been done.

Chair Lobermeier stated that the other category that needs to be talked about are potential
redevelopment parcels rather than just vacant parcels.

Commissioner Murdock stated that finding out about redevelopment possibilities could be
included in the public engagement process.

Chair Lobermeier asked Commissioner Murdock to give an overview of the e-mail that he had
sent to the Commission with the suggested Table of Contents.

Commissioner Murdock stated that rather than looking at the Comprehensive Plan as one big
thing, he thought looking at it from an outline perspective would be an easier way to tackle it. He
stated that he would like to see it be more people friendly and it be ready to attract business and
developers. He stated that one of his thoughts was to create more of a developer/development
guide that is refreshed every few years. He stated that then the City can work on the
Comprehensive Plan over the course of a few years by involving public engagement. He reviewed
what he had put together for a Table of Contents. He suggested that Chapter 1 be Purpose and
Process that would cover the community history, issues and challenges and opportunities;
Chapter 2 would be Development Guide which would cover the “big ideas”, land use plan, and
infrastructure and investment. He stated that he feels framing up what is included in Chapter 1 is
very important to the public engagement process. He gave the example of Oklahoma City’'s
Comprehensive Plan that included 7 “Big ldeas”. He noted that he really likes the way they laid
out their Land Use Typology with a table that gave a brief run down of all the categories. He stated
that then they break each one down into a one- page graphic that breaks it down in greater detail
and includes a picture of the type of land use. He stated that he thinks this approach is much
easier for people to understand than a typical zoning map. He stated that he doesn’t think it will
take too much work to take some of the existing information and use it to refresh a
developer/development guide while the Comprehensive Plan is being completed. He stated that
one other thing that Oklahoma City did that he thinks was a good idea was holding “meetings in
a box”. He stated that they asked neighborhoods or communities to hold a meeting and the City
provided a box with information and handouts for them to provide feedback. He suggested that
the Commission start by taking a look at the existing Table of Contents and start breaking it down.
He noted that some of the things done with the Oklahoma City Comprehensive Plan feel too large
for a small community like Wyoming, but felt that the Commission could still take inspiration from
much of what they did.

Chair Lobermeier stated that he thinks the implementation piece will be key and feels the current
implementation information is scattered throughout the Plan and not very specific. He stated that
the current Comprehensive Plan introduction section ignored the fact that it was supposed to be
an introduction and included too much information rather than just a summary.

3



Commissioner Ericson asked if Commissioner Murdock felt that Chapter 2 was more important
than Chapter 1 right now.

Commissioner Murdock stated that he thinks it is important for the Commission to work on the
introduction section of Chapter 1 because that will be important for public engagement. He
suggested creating a timeline of the City and noted that he thinks the visioning and guiding
principles are what will come out of the public engagement, so he would suggest starting work on
Chapter 2 first, along with the introduction section of Chapter 1.

Chair Lobermeier asked what the City was currently using as a developer guide.

Zoning Administrator Weck stated that City Administrator Linwood has a book with some
information on some of the available properties.

Commissioner Murdock stated that a simple map that shows if the area is serviceable would be
very helpful to developers.

Commissioner West stated that she agrees that making it simple is the best idea.

Commissioner Coughlin asked if Commissioner Murdock was suggesting that the City use their
existing maps for the time being and then revise them after going through the public engagement
process.

Commissioner Murdock stated that he thinks some slightly revised maps with information that is
organized a bit more consistently would work for now.

Commissioner Coughlin stated that if the City changes the land use maps and the descriptions it
will need to have a public hearing. She stated that she doesn’t want to get too far out ahead of
ourselves before the public has been engaged.

Commissioner Murdock stated that he would like to update things and make it more palatable to
get input from the citizens. He stated that in order to get really good input, the City is going to
need to spend some time educating people about what it is looking to get.

Commissioner West stated that she agreed and thinks that no one will have the time or interest
in reading the entire Comprehensive Plan.

Commissioner Coughlin stated that the Commission is not asking people to come up with the
Comprehensive Plan but is asking them to answer the questions that the Commission will use to
create the Plan. She referenced some of the old surveys that were used in the Township and
read aloud some of the questions and answers that were received.

Chair Lobermeier thanked Commissioner Murdock for putting this information together and asked
how the City can get to the next steps or what he would refer to as “scope of work”. He stated
that he thinks there needs to be an update given to the Council to make them aware of what the
Commission is thinking and how they would like to proceed. He stated that in looking at public
engagement opportunities, the calendar will be important.

Commissioner West suggested that the Commission start by streamlining and simplifying the
introduction section. She stated that there does need to be a real plan of where we are and where
we are hoping to be so there is a timeline of expectations.

Commissioner Murdock asked if there was a historical timeline for the City that may be included.

4



Zoning Administrator Weck stated that he does have a historical timeline available.

Chair Lobermeier stated that the Commission should also look at what resources are needed. He
stated that there may be outside resources such as utilizing an intern, or a University of Minnesota
grad student looking for experience. He noted that there may also be possible grant money to
assist in putting together the Comprehensive Plan. He stated that he thinks there is a lot that can
be done to have the right help at the right time and feels that the City needs expertise in some of
these areas.

Commissioner Coughlin noted that many of the costs and studies have already been completed
for the Comprehensive Plan so the City will not need to spend money to put it together.

Chair Lobermeier stated that he thinks that the Commission needs to start developing the scope
and identify when and where the best opportunities may be for getting feedback. He stated that
he foresees the Commission having more of a workshop type discussion rather than a formal
meeting to discuss the scope and next steps.

Commissioner Murdock stated that he would like to see the past surveys Commissioner Coughlin
referenced.

Commissioner West stated that she wants the Commission to keeps its momentum and come up
with a plan to move ahead. She suggested that the Commissioners each bring back two
Comprehensive Plan surveys from other communities that they find interesting for discussion at
the next meeting.

COMMUNICATIONS: NONE
UPDATES: NONE

A MOTION WAS MADE BY COMMISSIONER ERICSON, SECONDED BY
COMMISSIONER MURDOCK, TO ADJOURN THE APRIL 23, 2019 “REGULAR MEETING”
OF THE WYOMING, MINNESOTA PLANNING COMMISSION AT 8:13 PM.

Voting Aye: Murdock, Ericson, Coughlin, West and Lobermeier
Voting Nay: None
Abstain: None
Absent: None



	CITY OF WYOMING, MINNESOTA

